
   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA  

 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 

FIRST MONTHLY MEETING 

November 5, 2014 

9:00 a.m. 

 

 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Accept comments from the public. 

 

3. Approve minutes from the September 10 and 17, 2014 meetings. 

 

4. Routine items for November 5, 2014. 

 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 

b. Approve service and disability allowances. 

c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 

d. Approve death benefits. 

e. Accept Asset Allocation Report. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

5. The Board will go into closed session under Gov. Code Section 54957 to consider 

recommendations from the Medical Advisor and/or staff regarding the following 

disability retirement applications: 

 

    Member Type Sought  Recommendation 

a. Michael Espinoza Service Connected Service Connected 

b. Kenneth Gmeiner Service Connected Service Connected 

c. Jeffrey Nelson Service Connected Service Connected 

d. Christopher Wilson Service Connected Service Connected 

e. Sonya Pye Non-service Connected Non-service Connected 

 

OPEN SESSION 

 

6. Consider and take possible action to adopt BOR Resolution 2014-2 confirming the 

participation of the CCCERA “District” in the CCCERA retirement system. 

 



   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 

7. Consider and take possible action to adopt BOR Resolution 2014-3 consenting to the 

continued participation of CCCERA in the retirement system. 

 

8. Consider and take possible action to approve firm to offer Labor Relations and 

Consultation Services as the Chief Labor Negotiator. 

 

9. Presentation of Cash Flow report for the 6 months ended June 30, 2014.  

 

10. Consider and take possible action on SACRS legislative proposal. 

 

11. Report of Purchase And/Or Sale of A Pension Fund Investment: PIMCO. 

 

12. Consider and take possible action on Board meeting schedule for 2015. 

13. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 

a. 2014 Annual Review, Paulson Real Estate Funds, November 21, 2014, New York, 

NY. 

 

14. Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report 

b. Outside Professionals’ Report 

c. Trustees’ comments 

 

 



 

 

 
MINUTES 

 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

FIRST MONTHLY BOARD MEETING 

9:00 a.m. 

 

September 10, 2014 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

 

 

Present: Debora Allen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Karen Mitchoff, 

John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and Russell 

Watts 

 

Absent: None 

 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement 

Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Karen 

Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Peter Ahlstrom, Retirement Benefits Manager; 

Vickie Kaplan, Retirement Accounting Manager; and Christina Dunn, Retirement 

Administration Manager 

 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Harvey Leiderman   Reed Smith LLP 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No members of the public offered comment. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

It was M/S to approve the minutes of the June 25, 2014 meeting. After a discussion on the wording 

in Item 11, the Motion was withdrawn and the minutes of the June 25, 2014 meeting were tabled. 

It was M/S to approve the minutes of the July 9, 2014 meeting. After a discussion on the wording in 

Item 8, the Motion was withdrawn and the minutes of the July 9, 2014 meeting were tabled. 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the July 23, 2014 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, 

Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the July 31, 2014 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, 

Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

 



Page 2 

September 10, 2014 

 

 

4. Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the September 10, 2014 Board meeting. (Yes: Allen, 

Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) and 54956.9(d)(4). 

 

The Board moved into open session. 

 

Hast recused himself from participating in Item 5.  

 

5. Pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.1(a)(2), the following action related to Govt. Code Section 

54956.9(d)(1) was taken: 

(a)  Public Employees Union, Local 1, et al. v CCCERA and Board of Retirement, et al., Contra 

Costa County Superior Court Case No. N14-1221. 

 

It was M/S/C to retain Reed Smith on its behalf against Public Employees Union, Local 1, et al. 

(Yes: Allen, Gordon, Mitchoff, Phillips, Pigeon, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

Hast was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

6. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(4). 

7. Consider and take possible action on employer contribution rates as recommended by Segal 

Consulting for In-Home Supportive Services Authority PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) 

Schneider reported this item is similar to the item at the August 13, 2014 meeting regarding Con Fire 

and the need for an employer contribution rate for PEPRA General Tiers with a 2% COLA. 

After a discussion, it was M/S/C to adopt the employer contribution rates as recommended by Segal 

Consulting for In-Home Supportive Services Authority (IHSS) District (Cost Group #2) PEPRA Tier 

5 (2% COLA). (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

8. Consider and take possible action to issue a Request for Proposal for Website Redesign 

Schneider reported this item is a follow up to the Board’s request for more information on the RFP 

to redesign CCCERA’s website including the scope of the project and the services CCCERA would 

be requesting. 

The Board discussed the overall improvements for its redesigned website and would like to review 

the RFP prior to it being sent out. It was noted the cost was not included in the memo. 

Schneider reported the current website is cluttered and getting more difficult to maintain and staff 

feels the website needs to be completely overhauled. 

After discussion, it was M/S/C to continue this item until the next meeting to further discuss issuing 

an RFP. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

 

 



Page 3 

September 10, 2014 

 

 

9. Consider and take possible action to extend current contract for external auditing services or 

issue a Request for Proposal 

Kaplan gave an overview of her memo noting Brown Armstrong’s fees for the next three years 

would increase by 12%.  It was noted that when the last RFP was issued and Brown Armstrong was 

selected there was a caveat that the lead partner be changed. 

After discussion, it was M/S/C to retain Brown Armstrong as CCCERA’s external auditors for the 

next three year period from 2014-2016 and enter into a three (3) year contract, subject to annual 

review and issue an RFP for external auditing services at the end of this three year term. (Yes: Allen, 

Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

10. Consider and take possible action to issue a Request for Proposal to provide Labor Relations 

Services and a Request for Proposal to provide Labor and Employment Law Legal Services 

Levy reported the timing is crucial on issuing the RFP’s.  She noted one firm could provide both 

services. 

The Board requested a copy of the RFP before it is sent out. 

It was M/S/C to issue Requests for Proposals for: (1) Labor Relations Consultant; and (2) Labor and 

Employment Law Legal Counsel. (Yes: Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, 

Telles and Watts. No: Allen) 

11. Consider and take possible action to adopt Policy on Determining “Compensation Earnable” 

Under Assembly Bill 197 for Purposes of Calculating Retirement Benefits 

Hast reported this item is to adopt formally what was previously adopted verbally.   Levy stated this 

policy brings CCCERA under compliance with AB 197 and the Superior Court ruling in the AB 197 

litigation.  Levy is recommending having two policies, one for Legacy (pre-PEPRA) members and 

one for PEPRA Members (Policy is under Agenda Item 12) because there are two different statutory 

definitions for each group. 

The Board felt the wording in Item III.C., the last paragraph, needs to include the language from 

Item III.B page 3, second paragraph. 

It was M/S/C to adopt the Policy on Determining “Compensation Earnable” Under AB 197 For 

Purposes of Calculating Retirement Benefits for “Legacy” (Pre-PEPRA) Members.  (Yes: Allen, 

Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

12. Consider and take possible action to adopt Policy On Determining “Pensionable 

Compensation” Under PEPRA For Purposes of Calculating Retirement Benefits 

Levy reviewed the policy noting the policy reflects the action the Board previously took on 

December 12, 2012 to include base pay only in pensionable compensation for purposes of 

calculating retirement benefits for PEPRA members. 

In public comment, Ken Westerman, Deputy Sheriff’s Association, has concerns that the current 

policy on base pay only for PEPRA members is not the position of other ‘37 Act counties and 

CalPERS.  CalPERS and Alameda County recently voted to include certain items beyond base pay 

and feels CCCERA needs to review their policy because it is not competitive with other counties.   

The Board discussed including “base pay only” on a future agenda to review.  



Page 4 

September 10, 2014 

 

 

It was M/S/C to adopt the Policy on Determining “Pensionable Compensation” under PEPRA for 

Purposes of Calculating Retirement Benefits. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, 

Smithey, Telles and Watts. No: Rodrigues) 

The Board gave direction to staff to gather information on the changes made by CalPERS and other 

‘37 Act Systems regarding pensionable compensation and pay items that they are including. 

Telles was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

13. Consider and take possible action to update CCCERA’s Conflict of Interest Code 

Levy reported the conflict of interest code is reviewed on an annual basis. She reviewed her memo 

which summarizes the recommended updates to the Code. 

It was M/S/C to adopt the recommended updates to CCCERA’s Conflict of Interest Code as 

presented. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

Telles was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

14. Consider and take possible action on SACRS Voting Proxy 

It was M/S/C to appoint Rodrigues as the Voting Delegate and Telles as the Alternate Voting 

Delegate at the upcoming SACRS Conference. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, 

Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 16. 

16. Conference Seminar Attendance 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 staff member at the Investment Education 

Conference, Milliman, Oct. 1-3, 2014, Lake Tahoe, CA. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, 

Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of  1  staff member at the Annual Meeting, Conference 

of Consulting Actuaries, October 19-22, 2014, Rancho Mirage, CA. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, 

Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

c. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1  Board Member at the Annual CRCEA Fall 

Conference, California Retired County Employees Association, October 19-22, 2014, 

Sacramento, CA. (Yes: Allen, Gordon,  Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and 

Watts) 

d. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of all Board Members and all appropriate staff members 

at the 2014 Fall Conference, SACRS, November 11-14, 2014, Monterey, CA.  (Yes: Allen, 

Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff,  Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

 

17. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 

 

Strohl reported the Governor recently signed SB 673, establishing CCCERA as a special 

district effective January 1, 2015. 

 

The internal re-model continues and is on schedule. 

 

Price reported on the onsite meeting with Adams Street and felt it was a positive meeting. 

 

The Consultant RFP was issued on Monday. 



Page 5 

September 10, 2014 

 

 

 

DBL has asked if we have an interest in investing in their Fund III. 

 

Kaplan reported staff is working on year end close; GASB 67, and the software transition. 

 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 

Leiderman reported San Jose has Measure G on the ballot which will transfer control of the 

senior staff of the city pension fund away from the City Manager and over to the pension board. 

 

He requested a quiet period with labor representatives due to SB 673 until an employment 

counsel is hired and is able to provide expert advice on the protocols of being an employer 

under the Meyers Millers Brown Act.  

 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 

Hast stated the CCCERA Board does not intend on making any immediate changes to current 

employment policies once CCCERA becomes a special district. 

 

Philips reported on the Adams Street onsite and came out of meeting feeling very comfortable 

and would like to have them removed from the watch list.  

 

Telles reported he is not able to go to Torchlight. 

 

Mitchoff reported she is not able to go to Torchlight. 

 

18. Educational session regarding fiduciary duties presented by Harvey Leiderman, Reed Smith 

Leiderman reviewed the fundamental fiduciary duties of the CCCERA Board of Retirement. He 

stated their primary loyalty is to the members and beneficiaries of the retirement system. He 

reviewed the requirements of the CCCERA Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics, quiet periods, 

and conflict of interest.   

 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes:  Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, 

Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

 

 

 

 

             

Brian Hast, Chairman     Jerry Telles, Secretary 

 

 



 

  

 
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

SECOND MONTHLY BOARD MEETING 

9:00 a.m. 

 

September 17 , 2014 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

 

 

Present: Debora Allen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Karen Mitchoff, 

John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey and Jerry Telles 

 

Absent: Russell Watts 

 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement 

Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, 

Retirement General Counsel; Christina Dunn, Retirement Administration Manager, Chih-

Chi Chu, Retirement Investment Analyst; and Jeff Youngman, Retirement Investment 

Analyst 

 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Bob Helliesen  Milliman 

Marty Dirks  Milliman 

Dorian Young  Milliman 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No members of the public offered comment. 

3. Presentation from staff and Torchlight regarding potential commitment to the Torchlight Debt 

Opportunity Fund V – Daniel Heflin, Michael Romo 

Chu gave an overview of Torchlight noting they have a very strong fixed income program which 

consistently ranks very high among our peers.  He reviewed CCCERA’s investments with Torchlight 

noting we committed $60 million to Fund IV and based on our allocation table, we are able to 

commit $75 million to Fund V.  

Heflin gave a brief overview of the presentation and the firm. 

Romo reported Torchlight is now 100% owned by the partners and has always been focused on real 

estate debt.  He reviewed the teams noting they have been together over 14 years. He also reviewed 

the firm’s key milestones and their track record. 

Heflin reviewed CCCERA’s portfolio performance from inception through June 30, 2014 as well as 

portfolio performance change since March 2012 when they last presented to the Board. 



Page 2 

September 17, 2014 

 

 

He gave an overview of the federal debt level and the projected federal budget deficit.  He stated the 

lending market has not returned to its pre-2008 level.  He reviewed current market opportunities and 

Torchlight’s investment focus. 

He reviewed their investment strategy for Debt Opportunity Fund V and their initial target portfolio 

allocation.  He also reviewed the terms and capital amount for Fund V.    

4. Consider and take possible action regarding potential commitment to the Torchlight Debt 

Opportunity Fund V  

After a discussion on management fees, it was M/S/C to make a capital commitment of $75 million 

to the Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund V subject to due diligence, on-site, legal review and 

authorize the CEO to sign the necessary documents. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, 

Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

5. Presentation from staff on private real estate pacing schedule 

Price reviewed CCCERA’s Real Estate Program, current real estate market trends, staff’s 

recommended allocation and the impact on CCERA’s combined real estate portfolio. He reported 

every 2 years staff provide the Board with recommended allocation schedules for private equity and 

private real estate. 

 

Youngman reported CCCERA’s real estate target allocation is 12 ½% as of July 31, 2014 with an 

available $177 million to commit to real estate.  Staff feels the core side of real estate has been 

keeping up but the distressed and opportunistic strategies are the best places to invest.  He briefly 

reviewed Oaktree’s and Angelo Gordon’s strategy.  

 

Price discussed the recommended European allocation.  He also gave a brief overview of current real 

estate funds coming on the market in the immediate future. 

 

The Board complimented staff on their memos. 

 

Gordon was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

 

6. Presentation from staff and Oaktree regarding potential commitment to the Oaktree Real 

Estate Opportunities Fund VII – Frances Maletis, Justin Guichard 

Price reviewed potential commitments to the Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund VII and 

Angelo Gordon Realty Fund IX prior to both presentations. 

Price reported part of the allocation commitment being recommended is $65 million to Oaktree Real 

Estate Opportunities Fund VII and $65 million to Angelo Gordon Realty Fund IX. 

Youngman gave an overview of the relationship between CCCERA and Oaktree noting the 

performance of their real estate funds have been positive contributors to the real estate portfolio on a 

gross-of fees basis.  He also reviewed CCCERA’s current investments with Oaktree noting their 

funds have increased in size and have been able to deploy capital very quickly.   

Youngman reviewed Angelo Gordon’s approach to investing in opportunistic real estate.  He also 

gave an update on the amount of commitments available for private real estate investments and a 

summary of terms for both of the new funds. 

Oaktree waived the confidentiality clause in the presentation materials. 



Page 3 

September 17, 2014 

 

 

Maletis gave an overview of the firm noting there are over 800 employees located globally with their 

headquarters in Los Angeles and have over $91 in assets under management.   

Guichard reviewed their approach over the last eight years noting they have acquired significant 

assets.  He also gave an overview on the outlook on the areas of investments they are focusing on.   

He reviewed the primary points of Real Estate Opportunities Fund VII noting they are focusing on 

borrowers who borrow too much and lenders who lent too much.  He reported the size of Fund VII is 

targeted for $3 to $3.5 billion.  He stated they expect 75% of their investments going forward to be 

centered around commercial assets with 50% in the U.S. and 25% in Europe. 

Guichard reviewed their investment team and their track record noting that to date they have a 95:1 

profit-to-loss ratio for funds whose investments were led by John Brady. 

Maletis stated the first close is penciled in for February 3, 2015 and they have already received 

commitments.  Fee discounts were also discussed. 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 8. 

8. Presentation from staff and Angelo Gordon regarding potential commitment to the Angelo 

Gordon Realty Fund IX – Colleen Casey, Reid Liffmann 

Angelo Gordon waived the confidentiality clause in the presentation materials. 

Casey gave an overview of the firm noting they are privately owned with 70 partners.  Their two 

core strengths are credit and real estate and are currently managing over $27 billion.  She noted that 

80% of their clients are institutional and they work with about 50 public pension plans. 

Liffmann gave an overview of their strategy noting they are a bottoms-up real estate investor and use 

conservative leverage. He reviewed their real estate investment team noting employees stay for a 

very long time. He reviewed their approach to real estate stating they hire experienced fund 

managers and they partner with local real estate entrepreneurs.  He also reviewed the performance of 

their Opportunistic Realty Funds.   

Allen was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

Liffmann gave an update on CCCERA’s investment in Realty Fund VIII as of March 31, 2014 

noting the portfolio is doing very well.  He reviewed their acquisitions in 2013, recent deals and their 

existing assets.   

Casey reviewed the terms, management fees, and fee break they are offering on Fund IX noting the 

first closing will be on October 10, 2014. 

9. Consider and take possible action regarding potential commitment to the Angelo Gordon 

Realty Fund IX 

After discussion, a motion was M/S/C to commit $65 million to Angelo Gordon Realty Fund IX 

subject to due diligence, legal review and authorize the CEO to sign the necessary contracts.  (Yes: 

Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles)  

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 7. 

 



Page 4 

September 17, 2014 

 

 

7. Consider and take possible action regarding potential commitment to the Oaktree Real Estate 

Opportunities Fund VII 

Phillips reported he owns a modest number of shares and asked if he should recuse himself.  It was 

noted he is not required to but if he feels he would benefit from the investment then he should. 

Hast asked for the motion to be contingent on clarification of the Fund Name being “a Cayman 

Islands exempted limited partnership” and it being a feeder fund. 

After discussion, it was M/S/C to commit $65 million to the Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund 

VII as recommended by staff subject to due diligence, legal review including review of the Cayman 

Islands Fund and Feeder Fund and authorize the CEO to sign all necessary contracts. (Yes: Hast, 

Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

10. Review of total portfolio performance 

Dirks distributed a Flash Report for the period ending August 31, 2014. 

Young gave an overview of the market in general and also for the second quarter noting it was a 

good quarter for fixed income.  He also gave an overview of how the market typically performs in an 

election year. 

Dirks discussed the key points of the quarterly report noting the CCCERA Total Fund returned 3.8% 

for the second quarter.   

Price noted we are about 9 months away from an asset allocation report when asset classes can be 

reviewed. 

Helliesen reported the flash report shows Domestic Equities and Bonds are up noting it is a preview 

of what we will see on next quarterly report. 

a. Consideration of any managers already under review or to be placed under review 

Dirks reported on the managers on the watch list noting Adams Street and DBL are not on the 

report because they were put on watch at the end of the 2nd quarter.  He stated both were put on 

watch due to personnel changes. He reported the on-site visit to Adams Street went well and 

recommends removing Adams Street from the Watch list. 

After a discussion, it was M/S/C to remove Adams Street from the Watch List. (Yes: Hast, 

Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

Helliesen reported on Adelante performance and feels they can be removed from Watch List.  He 

gave an update on Lord Abbett and PIMCO and recommends keeping them on the Watch List for 

another quarter. 

It was M/S/C to remove Adelante from the Watch list. (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, 

Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

b. Consideration of any changes in allocations to managers 

There were no changes in allocations to managers. 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 

September 17, 2014 

 

 

c. Discussion of revision to 1
st
 quarter 2014 performance report 

Helliesen reported on the revisions to the 1st quarter report noting the bulk of the revisions were 

due to a software glitch with their provider. He also reported Milliman failed to include 2 new 

funds in the original report. 

11. Consider and take possible action to issue a Request for Proposal for Website Redesign 

After a discussion, it was M/S/C to issue the Request for Proposal for Website Redesign with a 

correction to 3.1, third bullet, removing the word “to” in the second line and removing “and 

approved by a two-thirds majority of the Board” from 3.2.6 regarding overages.  (Yes: Hast, 

Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Telles) 

12. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 

 

Strohl reported staff has been working on preparing CCCERA to become an independent 

district effective January 1, 2015. 

 

She reported staff is also working on the internal office remodel to improve the workflow. 

 

She has received media inquiries regarding the Investment Consultant RFP and also from a 

reporter with the LA Times regarding the use of base pay or base pay plus in pensionable 

compensation for PEPRA members. 

 

Price reported the next project will be on real assets and underwriting the INVESCO funds. 

 

Levy reported the two RFP’s are out for the Chief Labor Negotiator and the Labor and 

Employment Law Legal Counsel with a final submission date of October 3, 2014. 

 

Dunn reported the landscapers removed the shrubbery from the parking lot due to safety issues. 

 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 

Helliesen reported they are vigorously working on their response to the RFP CCCERA issued 

for an Investment Consultant. 

 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 

Phillips reported the Affiliates Committee is sponsoring a dinner on the first night of SACRS. 

 

 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes:  Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and 

Telles) 

 

 

 

 

             

Brian Hast, Chairman     Jerry Telles, Secretary 

 

























 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

Date:  November 5, 2014    

To:  CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From:  Karen Levy, General Counsel 

 

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Adopt BOR Resolution 2014-2 Confirming 

the Participation of the CCCERA "District" in the CCCERA Retirement System 

 

 

Background 

 

As a result of the passage of Senate Bill 673, CCCERA will be designated as a "district" 

effective January 1, 2015 pursuant to the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 ("CERL"), 

Government Code Section 31468(l)(3).  CCCERA staff members are currently members of the 

CCCERA retirement system.  SB 673 provides that on the date CCCERA is designated a 

"district" included in the retirement association, CCCERA personnel who had previously been in 

county service shall continue to be members of the CCCERA retirement association without 

interruption in service or loss of credit.  Thereafter, each person entering employment with the 

CCCERA shall become a member of the system on the first day of the calendar month following 

his or her entrance into service.  Independent districts may elect to be included as a participating 

employer in the CCCERA retirement system by adoption of a resolution by a two-thirds vote of 

the districts' governing body, with the consent of CCCERA.  (CERL Section 31557(b).)  

Enclosed, for the Board's consideration, is Board of Retirement Resolution 2014-2, which 

confirms the participation of the CCCERA "district" in the CCCERA retirement system pursuant 

to Government Code Section 31557(b).  We note that this action will not result in any practical 

changes in the way retirement contributions are handled for CCCERA staff as CCCERA has 

operated as a separate district vis-à-vis the County for many years. 
 

Recommendation  

 

Consider and take possible action to adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2014-2 confirming 

the participation of the CCCERA "district" in the CCCERA retirement system.  All officers and 

employees of CCCERA serving as CCCERA personnel on January 1, 2015 will continue their 

membership in CCCERA, pursuant to CERL section 31557.3.  Thereafter, each person entering 

into employment for CCCERA shall become a member of CCCERA on the first day of the 

calendar month following his or her entrance into service for CCCERA, pursuant to CERL 

section 31557(b).       



  

BOR Reso. No. 2014-2 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

CONFIRMING PARTICIPATION IN  

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION  

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 31557(b) 

 

WHEREAS, in or about August, 2014 the California Legislature adopted, and the Governor signed 

into law, Senate Bill 673 (Statutes 2014, Chapter 244), amending the County Employees' 

Retirement Law of 1937, Government Code sections 31450, et seq. ("CERL") in certain respects, 

and making other changes to California law ("SB 673"); and   

WHEREAS, SB 673 becomes effective on January 1, 2015 (the "Effective Date"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CERL section 31468(l)(3), the Contra Costa County Employees' 

Retirement Association ("CCCERA") is designated a "district" for purposes of inclusion in the 

retirement association known as CCCERA; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CERL section 31557.3, on the date CCCERA is designated a "district" 

included in the retirement association, CCCERA personnel who had previously been in county 

service shall continue to be members of the CCCERA retirement association without interruption 

in service or loss of credit. Thereafter, each person entering employment with the CCCERA shall 

become a member of the system on the first day of the calendar month following his or her 

entrance into service; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Retirement is the governing body of CCCERA (see, Corcoran v. Contra 

Costa County Employees Retirement Board (1997) 60 Cal. App. 4
th

 89); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to CERL section 31557(b), districts may elect to be included as a 

participating employer in CCCERA by adoption of a resolution by a two-thirds vote of the 

districts' governing body, with the consent of CCCERA; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Retirement hereby adopts this 

Resolution confirming its participation as a district included in CCCERA, on terms and conditions 

that CCCERA deems just and proper, pursuant to its separate Resolution consenting to this 

participation; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all officers and employees of CCCERA 

serving as CCCERA personnel on the Effective Date shall continue their membership in 

CCCERA, pursuant to CERL section 31557.3; and thereafter, each person entering into 

employment for CCCERA shall become a member of CCCERA on the first day of the calendar 

month following his or her entrance into service for CCCERA, pursuant to CERL section 

31557(b), or as otherwise provided by regulation, pursuant to CERL section 31527(h).                                  

  

 

 



 - 2 -  

BOR Reso. No. 2014-2 

 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED BY THE AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF THE BOARD OF 

RETIREMENT OF THE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT 

ASSOCIATION THIS _____ DAY OF ___, 2014. 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:   

 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Brian Hast 

Chairperson of the Board of Retirement 

 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Jerry Telles 

Secretary 

 

  

 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

Date:  November 5, 2014    

To:  CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From:  Karen Levy, General Counsel 

 

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Adopt BOR Resolution 2014-3 Consenting 

to the Continued Participation of CCCERA In the Retirement System  

 

 

Background 

 

As a result of the passage of Senate Bill 673, CCCERA will be designated as a "district" 

effective January 1, 2015 pursuant to the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 ("CERL"), 

Government Code Section 31468(l)(3).  Independent districts may elect to be included as a 

participating employer in CCCERA by adoption of a resolution by a two-thirds vote of the 

districts' governing body, with the consent of CCCERA.  (CERL Section 31557(b).)  In order to 

effectuate the CCCERA "district" participation in the CCCERA retirement system, upon the 

adoption of Resolution 2014-2 by CCCERA's governing board, the CCCERA Board of 

Retirement will be called upon to consent.  Enclosed, for the Board's consideration, is Board of 

Retirement Resolution 2014-3, which consents to the participation of the CCCERA "district" in 

the CCCERA retirement system pursuant to Government Code Section 31557(b).  We note that 

this action will not result in any practical changes in the way retirement contributions are 

handled for CCCERA staff as CCCERA has operated as a separate district vis-à-vis the County 

for many years. 
 

Recommendation  
 

Consider and take possible action to adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2014-3 consenting to 

the participation of the CCCERA "district" in the CCCERA retirement system.  All officers and 

employees of CCCERA serving as CCCERA personnel on January 1, 2015 will continue their 

membership in CCCERA, pursuant to CERL section 31557.3.  Thereafter, each person entering 

into employment for CCCERA shall become a member of CCCERA on the first day of the 

calendar month following his or her entrance into service for CCCERA, pursuant to CERL 

section 31557(b).      



  

BOR Reso. No. 2014-3 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

CONSENTING TO PARTICIPATION IN  

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION  

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 31557(b) 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Retirement of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 

Association (“CCCERA”), as the governing body of a district as defined under section 31468(l) of 

the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937, Government Code sections 31450, et seq. 

(“CERL”) has adopted a resolution by at least two-thirds vote electing to be included in CCCERA 

as a participating employer, effective as of January 1, 2014; and   

WHEREAS, pursuant to CERL section 31557(b), CCCERA’s participation in CCCERA requires 

the consent of the Board of Retirement acting on behalf of the retirement association created 

pursuant to section 31550, by majority vote;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to CERL section 31564.5, the Board of Retirement, for the retirement 

association, may determine if there are conditions peculiar to a district that require greater or lesser 

rates of contributions to pay its proportionate share of the costs of the system than those required 

of the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Retirement, for the retirement association, finds that there are no 

conditions peculiar to CCCERA as a district that require greater or lesser rates of contributions to 

pay its proportionate share of the costs of the system than those required of the County; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Retirement hereby adopts this 

Resolution consenting to CCCERA’s participation as a district included in CCCERA; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that effective January 1, 2015 the rates of 

contributions on behalf of CCCERA employees shall be the same as those required on behalf of  

similarly situated County employees, and no additional appropriations shall be required; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all officers and employees of CCCERA 

serving as CCCERA personnel on the Effective Date shall continue their membership in 

CCCERA, pursuant to CERL section 31557.3; and thereafter, each person entering into 

employment for CCCERA shall become a member of CCCERA on the first day of the calendar 

month following his or her entrance into service for CCCERA, pursuant to CERL section 

31557(b), or as otherwise provided by regulation, pursuant to CERL section 31527(h).  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 - 2 -  

 

BOR Reso. No. 2014-3 

 

 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED BY THE AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF THE BOARD OF 

RETIREMENT OF THE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT 

ASSOCIATION THIS _____ DAY OF ___, 2014. 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:   

 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Brian Hast 

Chairperson of the Board of Retirement 

 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Jerry Telles 

Secretary 

 



 

 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747    www.cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 5, 2014 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Consider and take possible action to approve firm to offer Labor Relations and 

Consultation Services as the Chief Labor Negotiator 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

On September 12, 2014, CCCERA issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) to provide Labor 

Relations and Consultation Services as the Chief Labor Negotiator.  There were two respondents, 

Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP and Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo.  Both 

respondents meet and/or exceed the minimum qualifications set forth in the RFP.  A summary of 

RFP requirements and the two proposals are attached for your review. 

 

Recommendation 

Interview the two candidate firms to determine the best candidate and approve the selection.  

 



 

EXCERPTS FROM: 

 

Request for Proposals to Provide  
Labor Relations & Consultation Services As The Chief Labor 

Negotiator 
 

_______________________________________________________ 
 
 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
CCCERA intends to select one or more contractors as approved Chief Labor 
Negotiator in representing CCCERA in labor relations, consultation services and labor 
contract negotiation services.  The scope of work for the Chief Labor Negotiator 
includes, but is not limited to: negotiation, documentation, administration and 
interpretation of labor agreements and Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), and 
assistance in processing of certain grievances for represented employees on request 
of CCCERA. CCCERA is looking for a consultant with the following qualifications:  
 

• Expertise in public employee labor relations; 

• Experience in negotiating with public employee organizations; 

• Proven track record for maintaining productive and respectful 
relationships with employee organizations; 

• Demonstrated creative approaches to meeting management and 
employee interests in a cost effective manner; 

• Experience working with Board members and management 
representatives; 

• Expertise in developing clear contract language; 

• Capacity to devote needed time to CCCERA contract negotiations; 

• Knowledge of and experience implementing recent legislative 
changes impacting public labor relations including impasse 
procedures, pension and health care reform. 

 
The following describes the services to be performed by the selected proposer: 
 

1. Assist the Retirement Chief Executive Officer, and/or her designees, 
in advising and consulting with the Board of Retirement on matters 
relating to employment conditions and employer-employee relations. 
This includes in-person and other consultations with the Retirement 
Chief Executive Officer and/or her designee as deemed necessary 
including, but not limited to: 

• Meet with designated staff to define management goals and 
policy for labor negotiations; 



 Page 2 

• Provide research and consultation on current trends, practices, 
and community standards of other public employers on a variety 
of labor related issues;  

• Meet with designated staff to assist in formulating the 
management proposals for negotiations; 

• Participate in drafting proposals for negotiations; 

• Perform necessary fact research for negotiations;  

• Assist in the formulation and preparation of cost analysis of 
management and union proposals;  

• Provide progress reports, make recommendations, and receive 
direction; and  

• Provide consultation on grievance handling and other conflict 
resolution procedures.  

2. Meet and confer in good faith for and on behalf of CCCERA, as the 
designated representative of the Retirement Board, with 
representatives of recognized employee organizations of CCCERA, 
including, but not limited to: 

• Attend negotiation sessions as CCCERA's lead negotiator;  

• Serve as spokesperson for situational meetings and conferences 
as they arise, including, but not limited to, work schedule 
changes, revisions of departmental rules and staffing guidelines 
and statutory changes; 

• Act as CCCERA's management advisor in mediation, fact finding 
and related procedures. 

3. Assist the Retirement Chief Executive Officer and/or her designee in 
reporting to the Board of Retirement on the progress of meeting and 
conferring in good faith with each of the recognized employee 
organizations. 

4. Represent CCCERA in impasse and any subsequent procedures as 
assigned by the Retirement Chief Executive Officer and/or her 
designee. 

5. Provide support and interpretation of MOU language as requested 
by the Retirement Chief Executive Officer and/or her designee. 



 Page 3 

6. Advise and consult, as requested, with the Retirement Chief 
Executive Officer and/or her designee on other matters (outside of 
normal bargaining) relating to employment conditions and employer-
employee relations at such times and places to be mutually agreed 
upon by the Retirement Chief Executive Officer and/or her designee. 

7. Consult as to employer-employee issues inclusive of grievances, 
including assisting with and preparation and presentation of 
administrative hearings, fact finding and arbitrations as requested by 
the Retirement Chief Executive Officer and/or her designee. 

8. Provide strategic planning on specific negotiations as well as overall 
labor relations strategy. 

 
EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Proposals should contain information reflecting but not limited to: 
 

• Regular and continuous engagement in the business of providing 
labor relations consulting services for at least five (5) years prior 
to the date of this RFP issue. 

• Knowledge of and experience in current employer-employee 
relations practices, trends and major problems, principles of labor 
negotiations, applicable federal and state labor laws, public and 
private sector labor practices, structure and operation of county 
government, and employee benefit and retirement programs. 

• High level skill and demonstrated experience in: (a) standard 
principles of the collective bargaining process in the public and/or 
private sector, (b) serving as a lead negotiator for a variety of 
labor negotiations and settlements encompassing a diverse 
range of employee organizations, (c) establishing cooperative 
labor-management relationships, (d) working cooperatively and 
discretely with Board members and staff, (e) dispute resolution, 
and (f) written and oral communication. 

• Extensive experience working in the public sector and a broad 
range of agencies and labor organizations. 

 
  



 

 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’  

RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL  

 

LABOR RELATIONS AND CONSULTATION SERVICES  

AS CHIEF LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

Joseph E. Wiley 

WILEY PRICE & RADULOVICH, LLP 

1301 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 310 

Alameda, California  94501 

Telephone:  (510) 337-2810 

Facsimile:  (510) 337-2811 

Email: jwiley@wprlaw.com 

www.wprlaw.com



1 

 

RESPONSE TO CCCERA RFP TO PROVIDE LABOR RELATIONS 

AND CONSULTATION SERVICES AS THE CHIEF LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

 

Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP appreciates the opportunity to submit a response to the 

RFP to provide labor relations and consultation services as the chief labor negotiator. 

 

Service Description and Scope of Work 

 

Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP proposes to provide all services needed by CCCERA in 

conjunction with our firm serving as the chief labor negotiator.  This will include meeting with 

management and the governing board to learn CCCERA’s needs, and goals in labor negotiations 

and labor relations; working with the management and the governing board to develop 

CCCERA’s labor relations strategy and strategy for meeting and conferring with the employee 

associations; working with management to develop bargaining proposals and responses to 

bargaining proposals; working with management to develop costing of proposals; working with 

management to respond to any requests for information made by the employee associations; 

serving as chief spokesperson at the bargaining table and meeting and conferring in good faith 

with the representatives of the employee associations; consulting with and advising the 

Governing Board and Chief Executive Officer concerning labor relations matters; assisting with 

administration and implementation of the memoranda of understanding, including issues of 

interpretation; and assisting in the processing of grievances as requested by CCCERA. 

 

Organization Background/Description of Firm 

 

Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP practices exclusively labor and employment law.  Joe 

Wiley, Suzanne Price and Monna Radulovich founded Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP in 1996.  

Since that time, our attorneys and staff have built a law firm that offers its employer-clients 

responsive, individualized representation in labor and employment law and litigation.  Our 

attorneys have extensive experience representing public agencies in all areas of California public 

sector labor and employment law.  Approximately 75-80% of our work is performed on behalf of 

our public agency clients.   

 

Our firm represents a variety of public agencies, including Courts, cities, and special 

districts, such as wastewater, clean water, park, hospital, mosquito abatement and fire protection 

districts.  Public agency employers we have represented include: 

 

Alameda County Superior Court 

Amador Water Agency 

City of Alameda 

City of Berkeley 

City of Cupertino 

City of Hercules 

City of Martinez 

City of Pacifica 

City of Pleasant Hill 

City of Redwood City 

Marin County Superior Court 

Menlo Park Fire Protection District 

Orange County Superior Court 

Riverside County Superior Court 

Sacramento County Superior Court 

Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito & Vector    

  Control 

San Francisco County Superior  

  Court 

San Luis Obispo County Superior  



2 

 

City of San Bruno 

Contra Costa County Superior 

   Court 

Contra Costa Water District 

Hastings College of Law 

Housing Authority County of Santa 

   Clara 

Judicial Council of California/ 

  Administrative Office of the  

  Courts 

Los Angeles County Superior 

   Court 

 

  Court 

Santa Barbara County Superior  

  Court 

Santa Clara County Superior Court 

Shasta County Superior Court 

Solano County Superior Court 

South Coast Air Quality Management      

District 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

Tahoe-Truckee Sanitation Agency 

Truckee Sanitary District 

Union Sanitary District 

West County Wastewater District 

Yuba County Water Agency 

 

 We have public agency clients that range in size from two employees to nearly six 

thousand employees.  As a result, we have learned to be flexible and that “one size” does not “fit 

all” when identifying solutions to labor relations issues.  We recognize the unique obligations of 

public sector employers and are mindful of their public accountability.  We have extensive 

experience working with elected officials and addressing their needs and concerns. 

 

Joe Wiley and Masa Shiohira are the two attorneys we propose work on CCCERA 

matters depending upon the scope of its needs.  Mr. Wiley has served as chief spokesperson on 

behalf of numerous public agencies governed by the Meyers Milias Brown Act (“MMBA”), as 

well as other public sector bargaining statutes, for more than 30 years.  Masa Shiohira has served 

as chief spokesperson for public agencies for nine years.  The labor organizations with which 

they have bargained include, but are not limited to, Service Employees International Union, 

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, IFPTE Local 21, United Public 

Employees, Local 1, the Teamsters’ Union, Oakland Education Association, Stationary 

Engineers Local 39, Operating Engineers Local 3, the Laborers International Union of North 

America, the United Association of Journeymen and Apprentices of the Plumbing and Pipefitting 

Industry of the United States and Canada, the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, 

and California Federation of Interpreters.  More details concerning the backgrounds and 

experience of Mr. Wiley and Mr. Shiohira are included below. 

 

A major component of our labor negotiations philosophy involves communications with 

our client to learn and implement its needs, interests and goals.  We assist our clients in 

ascertaining proposals that they may wish to make during negotiations, and we communicate 

with our client concerning the prioritization of the proposals. Similarly, we communicate with 

our clients concerning the proposals received from the union and develop a response and strategy 

based upon the client’s needs and interests.  At all times, we keep our clients apprised of the 

status and developments. 

 

Our bargaining approach across the table from the union is typically more on the 

traditional side, but we use interest based bargaining techniques if and when they may be 

productive. 



3 

 

 

We strive to maintain a professional relationship with the union and therefore conduct 

bargaining sessions in a professional manner.  We recognize that our public agency clients must 

interact with the unions and the employees they represent on a day-to-day basis, and that, 

typically, maintaining open communications and a professional demeanor during negotiations 

best serve our clients in the long run in their relations with the unions and the employees. 

 

We recognize that many of our public agency clients are facing trying economic times, 

which often makes labor negotiations more difficult.  We work hard to educate the union and the 

employees on the bargaining team, when necessary, of the financial situation facing the agency 

and work to reach agreement when feasible.   

 

We pride ourselves in working well with public agency governing boards and staff to 

develop strategies for the labor negotiations, ascertain the interests and goals of the public 

agency, and develop proposals.   

 

Our firm has extensive experience with many of the public sector labor relations statutes, 

including the Meyers Milias Brown Act, as well as other employment laws, including laws 

governing employment discrimination, leaves of absence, the Public Employees’ Pension 

Reform Act, Fair Labor Standards Act, and disability accommodation.  Our firm also has 

experience participating in mediation and factfinding to resolve impasses that may occur in 

negotiation.  We also have assisted our clients who have been faced with union campaigns, unit 

determination issues, as well as unfair labor practice charges and strikes.  Our firm represents 

public agencies before the California Public Employment Relations Board (PERB), labor 

arbitrators, civil service commissions and other administrative agencies.  The above depth and 

breadth of experience allows our firm to represent well our public agency clients in labor 

negotiations.  We know the law and its implications for labor agreements.  We know the 

important role that bargaining history may play in grievance arbitrations.  We also know how to 

best position bargaining issues that may end up before PERB.   

 

 In addition to serving as chief spokesperson at the bargaining table, Mr. Wiley and Mr. 

Shiohira both regularly advise clients about their obligations to meet and confer with unions 

before implementing managerial or operational changes that affect the wages, hours or terms and 

conditions of employment of represented employees.  They are also frequently called upon to 

assist our clients with interpretation and administration of their labor agreements and responses 

to grievances. 

 

Our attorneys have also represented our clients in hundreds of labor arbitrations involving 

disciplinary and contract interpretation issues.  We are familiar with a number of the labor 

arbitrators and believe our firm has an outstanding reputation among California labor arbitrators. 

 

We also have experience helping newly created public agencies develop and establish 

their personnel and labor relations policies and procedures.  We represented approximately 30 

trial courts and the Administrative Office of the Courts when the trial courts became separate 

entities from the counties, and we have also assisted a newly created transit agency.  Our 

representation of the trial courts included training of staff on a variety of labor relations and 



4 

 

employment law issues, preparing employer-employee labor relations resolutions, preparing 

personnel policies, and negotiating labor agreements. 

 

Both Mr. Wiley and Mr. Shiohira have experience implementing recently enacted 

legislation.  Mr. Wiley was instrumental in assisting trial courts and the Administrative Office of 

the Courts implement new laws establishing the trial courts as separate employers.  Both have 

also advised clients concerning implementation of a variety of new laws, including the 

Affordable Care Act, the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act, the Americans with 

Disabilities Act and subsequent amendments thereto, changes to California’s discrimination 

laws, both State and Federal family and medical leave laws, changes to California’s pregnancy 

disability leave laws, and the addition of factfinding to the Meyers Milias Brown Act. 

 

Because our firm also represents private sector employees in labor and employment 

matters, both Mr. Wiley and Mr. Shiohira have knowledge of private sector labor practices.   

 

Both also keep abreast of labor relations trends and practices through publications we 

receive in our office, attendance at conferences, research, and collaboration with others in the 

labor relations field. 

 

Because of their extensive negotiations experience, both Mr. Wiley and Mr. Shiohira 

have knowledge concerning employee benefit and retirement programs.  For more complex 

benefits issues, we consult with highly-regarded benefits counsel at Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw 

Pittman, LLP and Chang Ruthenberg and Long, P.C. 

 

We believe you will find that we have the time and ability to get to know CCCERA and 

its needs in labor negotiations, so that we can effectively advise CCCERA and pursue labor 

negotiations in a manner that best serves its interests and accomplishes its goals. 

 

The firm employs six attorneys, and three experienced support staff personnel.  Our firm 

has two locations.  Our principal office is located at 1301 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 310, 

Alameda, California.  We also have a San Diego branch office.  The work for CCCERA will be 

performed out of our Alameda office.  Masa Shiohira is the managing partner and is responsible 

for the oversight and administration of the firm.  Our staff includes two experienced legal 

secretaries and a bookkeeper, who are skilled in facilitating communications between our client 

and attorneys.      

 

We are committed to providing the very highest quality representation for our clients in a 

cost effective manner with a personal sensitivity made possible by a smaller firm. 

 

Staffing: 

 

 We propose assigning Joe Wiley, and Masa Shiohira to perform services for CCCERA.  

The attorney in charge will be Joe Wiley. 

 

 

 



5 

 

1. Joseph E. Wiley 

 

Mr. Wiley has worked extensively in public and private sector labor and employment 

law.  He was graduated with high honors from the Michigan State University Honors College in 

1972 and received his Master's Degree from the Industrial Relations Research Institute, 

University of Wisconsin, Madison in 1975.  He received his legal education at Santa Clara 

University, graduating magna cum laude in 1978.  Mr. Wiley was admitted to the practice of law 

in California in 1978.  Mr. Wiley served as a regional representative for the California Public 

Employment Relations Board and as a field attorney for the Oakland office of the National Labor 

Relations Board.  He also has taught public sector labor and employment law at the University of 

Santa Clara School of Law.  Mr. Wiley is a member of the Labor and Employment Law Section 

of the State Bar of California and the Labor & Employment Law section of the American Bar 

Association.   He was a member of the Executive Committee of the Labor and Employment Law 

Section of the State Bar of California from 1998 to 2002.  For over fifteen years, Mr. Wiley has 

served the United States District Court for the Northern District of California as an Early Neutral 

Evaluator in labor and employment law cases.  He is licensed to appear in all State and Federal 

Courts in the State of California. 

 

Mr. Wiley is recognized as an expert at representing public and private sector employers 

in traditional labor relations and employment law matters.  Mr. Wiley has been the lead 

spokesperson in over 200 labor agreement negotiations.  Mr. Wiley is effective in labor 

negotiations because he understands that a “good” contract depends on the process by which it is 

reached.  The process also sets the tone for the continuing relationship between the parties 

which, unlike the case with other contracts, can continue for years.  He listens well and considers 

carefully issues the association or union raises.  Often, he finds that the real problem is not the 

issue brought to the table and thus, works hard to solve the problem.  He is persuasive at the 

bargaining table when addressing employee concerns.  His knowledge of public sector 

employment issues and breadth of experience assists his understanding of the issues arising in 

the meet and confer process.  He is particularly effective in working with staff and governing 

boards to develop strategies for the labor negotiations and keeping the governing board apprised 

of developments. 

 

As chief spokesperson, he has represented clients in impasse procedures.  He has 

participated in approximately 50 mediations. 

Issues Mr. Wiley has recently bargained include wage and benefit concessions, decision 

and impact bargaining over layoffs, reduction in fringe benefit levels, increases in fringe benefit 

contributions, and retirement benefit issues. 

Mr. Wiley regularly advises our clients about the requirements and application of their 

labor agreements, their obligations to meet and confer with unions before implementing 

managerial or operational changes that affect the wages, hours or terms and conditions of 

employment of represented employees, the scope of employer obligations to bargain decisions 

affecting changes in the workplace and/or the impacts of those decisions, and the possible 

impediments presented by the labor agreement to making changes during the contract term.  Mr. 

Wiley provides expert counsel to employers regarding employee discipline and grievance 

procedure issues. 



6 

 

 

 Mr. Wiley has represented clients in over 300 grievance/disciplinary arbitrations or 

administrative hearings in his over 35 years of practice.  He has also successfully represented 

employers in numerous civil service commission hearings and Department of Labor hearings.   

 

Mr. Wiley, a former Regional Representative of California’s Public Employment 

Relations Board, has successfully represented our clients in approximately 60 unfair practice 

proceedings before PERB.  In the recent past, the issues Mr. Wiley has litigated before PERB 

include: an employer’s right to determine staffing levels, alleged bad faith bargaining regarding 

the decision/impact to layoff employees, alleged bad faith bargaining relating to unilateral 

implementation of terms of employment, wearing of union buttons, and union access generally, 

as well as, specifically, union access to the employer’s email system.  He has also represented 

clients in union elections, severance petitions, and unit modifications. 

 

 Mr. Wiley has represented employers in approximately 120 civil actions.  As in most 

civil matters, the overwhelming majority of these cases were either dismissed on summary 

judgment or settled.  Mr. Wiley has had three jury trials successfully obtaining a defense verdict 

in all three matters.   In recognition of his many years of litigation experience, the United States 

District Court for the Northern District of California selected Mr. Wiley to serve as an Early 

Neutral Evaluator in labor and employment law cases.   

 

Mr. Wiley’s articles on employment discrimination and due process obligations of public 

employers have appeared in the National Law Journal, Law Practice Management, California 

Labor & Employment Law Quarterly and California Public Employee Relations (CPER).  He has 

presented trainings on a variety of topics including harassment preventions, due process 

obligations, First Amendment issues involving public employees, labor negotiations preparation, 

communicating effectively during labor negotiations, responding to union organizing, disability 

accommodations and the interactive process, social media issues in the workplace, and effective 

discipline.  He is a frequent speaker at the California Public Employers Labor Relations 

Association (CALPELRA) annual conference. 

 

 List of Negotiation During Past Year: 

 

• Contra Costa Water District and Stationary Engineers Local 39 

• Humane Society of Silicon Valley and SEIU, Local 521 

• Alameda County Superior Court and SEIU, Local 1021 

• Fresno County Superior Court and SEIU Local 521 

• Shasta County Superior Court and United Public Employees of California 

• Contra Costa Water District and Local 21 Professional & Technical Employees 

• San Diego County Superior Court and County Court Employees Association 

 

2. Masa Shiohira 

 

Mr. Shiohira, graduated from the University of California, Berkeley in 1999, with a 

Bachelor of Arts degree in Political Science and Mass Communications. He received his Juris 

Doctor from the University of California, Hastings College of the Law, in 2005. Following law 



7 

 

school, he attended the Harvard Program on Negotiations, completing “Negotiating Labor 

Agreements” in the summer of 2006.  He was admitted to the State Bar of California on 2005.  

He is licensed to appear in all State and Federal Courts in California. 

 

Before joining Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP in 2006, Mr. Shiohira worked in Labor 

Relations with the City and County of San Francisco. While in law school, he worked for the 

National Football League Management Council, representing both the National Football League 

and its individual teams in labor relations and arbitrations. 

 

For nine years, Mr. Shiohira has represented public agency employers in labor and 

employment matters.  He has particular expertise in labor negotiations, having successfully 

negotiated labor agreements under a number of the California public sector labor relations 

statutes, as well as the National Labor Relations Act.  Mr. Shiohira has represented Riverside 

County Superior Court, Sonoma County Superior Court, and Tehama County Superior Court in 

labor negotiations, serving both as Chief Spokesperson and behind-the-scenes advisor.  He 

recently completed bargaining for a trial court with a bargaining unit of approximately seven 

hundred employees.  This bargaining involved major economic concessions, including giving the 

employer the unilateral right to convert holidays to unpaid time, requiring new retirement 

contributions for existing employees, and putting into place new limits on leave accruals.  In the 

spring of 2012, Mr. Shiohira successfully negotiated four MOUs for a northern California City 

client’s miscellaneous bargaining units that included cost-sharing and cost-containment measures 

pertaining to retirement and health care, including employees paying a portion of the employer’s 

retirement contribution.  Mr. Shiohira has recently served as the chief spokesperson for multiple 

clients navigating the change from recent concessionary periods into periods where they could 

afford to maintain the status quo or offer some wage and benefit increases.  He has also 

represented our public agency clients in mediation and factfinding, including participating in one 

of the early factfinding cases under the MMBA, which resulted in a positive factfinding report 

for the employer on all major economic issues. 

   Mr. Shiohira works closely with management and the governing board to develop 

bargaining strategies.  Clients appreciate his professionalism, as well as his ability to maintain 

good working relationships with unions. 

 

Mr. Shiohira has represented our clients in a variety of disciplinary and grievance 

arbitrations.  His recent successes include a finding in a disciplinary case that all of the 

represented employees were “at-will” under the employer’s policies, even though the labor 

contract did not include such a provision.  The discipline was upheld in that matter as well.  Mr. 

Shiohira also recently won a grievance arbitration in which an employee was seeking significant 

overtime going back multiple years.   

 

 Mr. Shiohira has responded to numerous charges brought under a variety of the statutes 

administered by PERB.  Mr. Shiohira has successfully resolved a number of cases prior to a 

complaint issuing, and has also handled cases throughout the PERB process.  Recently, he 

obtained an Administrative Law Judge decision in favor of the employer on a unit modification 

issue that had never previously been addressed by PERB.  The case is currently on appeal to the 

PERB Board. 



8 

 

Mr. Shiohira regularly advises our clients regarding employee relations; compliance with 

labor and employment laws, including the MMBA, FLSA and Fair Employment and Housing 

Act; contract administration; employee discipline; due process; disability accommodation; 

misconduct investigations; and issues that arise under grievance procedures.   

 

List of Negotiations During Past Year: 

 

• 2013: Marin Superior Court MOU negotiations with SEIU Local 1021 

• 2013: Riverside Superior Court MOU negotiations with LIUNA Local 777 

• 2013-2014: Riverside Superior Court MOU negotiations with SEIU Local 721 

• 2014: West County Wastewater District MOU negotiations with PEU Local One 

(two separate units; ongoing) 

 

Rates, Costing and Billing Information 

 

We propose the following hourly billing rates to CCCERA for three years: 

  

Joe Wiley -  $295 per hour January 1, 2015 – December 31, 2107 

  

Masa Shiohira -  $255 per hour January 1, 2015 – December 31, 2017 

  

The offered rate is the lowest rate we charge to our public agency clients. 

 

Our firm bills in 1/10 of an hour increments.  The firm will not bill for travel time unless 

substantive work takes place during the travel time.  We do not bill our client for Westlaw 

charges.  Postage is billed at actual cost and copies are billed at $0.10 per page. 

 

References: 

 

We invite you to contact any of the following as a reference concerning our labor 

negotiations/labor relations services: 

 

1. Ms. Lyn Bell 

Executive Director Human Resources 

San Diego County Superior Court 

330 W. Broadway 

Room 521 

San Diego, California  92112-2724 

Telephone No.:  (619) 450-7100 

Email:  lyn.bell@sdcourt.ca.gov  

 

  



9 

 

2. Ms. Brenda Lussier 

Executive Director, Human Resources 

Ms. Joan Moody  

Human Resources 

Riverside County Superior Court 

4075 Main Street 

Riverside, California  92501 

Telephone No.:  (951) 777-3005 

Fax No.:  (951) 955-1498 

brenda.lussier@riverside.courts.ca.gov  

joan.moody@riverside.courts.ca.gov  

 

3. Ms. Margaret Ramirez 

Human Resources Director 

Contra Costa Water District 

1331 Concord Avenue 

Post Office Box H20 

Concord, California 94524 

Telephone No.:  (925) 688-8038 

Fax No.:  (925) 688-8122 

Email:  mramirez@ccwater.com 

 

4. Ms. Sheran Morton 

  Court Executive Officer 

  Fresno County Superior Court 

  1100 Van Ness  

Fresno, California 93724-0002 

Telephone No.:  (559) 457-2026 

Fax No.:  (559) 457-2035 

Email:  SMorton@fresno.courts.ca.gov   

 

 

Dated: October 2, 2014 Submitted by, 

 

WILEY PRICE & RADULOVICH, LLP 

 

 

 

By:________________________________ 

JOSEPH E. WILEY 

 

   

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO 
RESPONSE TO 

Contra Costa County Employees' 
Retirement Association 

Request for Proposals for to Provide 
Labor Relations & Consultation Services  

as the Chief Labor Negotiator 

Due:  Friday, October 3, 2014 by 5:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 

Service Description/Scope of Work ....................................................................... 1 
 
Organizational Background ................................................................................... 1 
 
Experience Requirements ..................................................................................... 3 
 
Staffing .................................................................................................................. 7 
 
Costs ..................................................................................................................... 8 
 
Attachment A - Attorney Resumes  ....................................................................... 9 
 
 
 

 



 

1 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION/SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo (“AALRR” or “Firm”) has 
reviewed the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 
(“CCCERA” or “Association”) request for proposal and scope of work 
under Section II of the RFP and is prepared to provide Labor Relations & 
Consultation Services as the Chief Labor Negotiator.  As detailed below, 
the Firm has the experience and resources to serve as legal advisor and 
work closely with CCCERA personnel to support and negotiate the 

CCCERA’s Bargaining Units through final agreement or unilateral implementation if 
necessary. The Firm is also qualified to provide the Association with “on-call” services in 
matters relative to its new role as a public agency and all the requirements of the Meyers-
Milias-Brown Act. 

AALRR Pleasanton office is located within minutes of the Association. Our attorneys are 
familiar with the union activity, and reputation within the region.  The CCCERA will receive 
the substantial benefit of the Firm’s broad and diverse technical knowledge, practical 
experience, and professional resources that enable our Firm to offer the best legal services in 
a cost-efficient and timely manner.  

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo is pleased to have the opportunity to present its 
qualifications to represent the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association with 
respect to its new role as a public agency and legal services as Chief Labor Negotiator 
between the Association and the United Clerical, Technical & Specialized Employees 
AFSCME, Local 2700 and the Professional and Technical Engineers IEPTE, Local 21.  Since 
1979, our firm has had the distinct privilege of providing quality legal services and strategic 
advice to many California cities and agencies.   

As a full-service statewide law firm, AALRR possesses first-hand knowledge and broad 
experience in all types of legal issues faced by public agencies in the state of California, as 
well as the particular labor challenges facing local cities and agencies. Our Firm’s roots are 
within the labor industry; our firm’s founding partners were involved in developing the first 
management collective bargaining contract model in California. They also assisted the Public 
Employment Relations Board in developing its initial rules and regulations.  The firm has 
been recognized as a thought leader who invests time to learn and understand client 
priorities and challenges. The firm has identified a team of attorneys to assist the Association 
with any upcoming negotiations and general strategic legal counsel.  This team of attorneys 
have the right knowledge base, negotiation experience, and industry exposure to understand 
the dynamics and operating procedures of the bargaining units representing Association 
employees and experience in public employee management.  
 
ORGANIZATIONAL BACKGROUND 

 
AALRR began its law practice in 1979 with one office and five attorneys. Today, with over 35 
years of law practice, the number of our offices has grown to eight locations, including the 
following: Cerritos, Fresno, Irvine, Pasadena, Pleasanton, Riverside, Sacramento, and San 
Diego. AALRR is an experienced law firm with 145 attorneys in offices strategically positioned 
throughout California. We are proud to be part of the local community with neighboring 



 

2 

Contra Costa.  Many of our employees live in and around the Contra Costa County limits and 
take full-advantage of what the area has to offer.  
 

In June 2014, the firm was ranked 282 in the National Law Journal’s 350. This annual survey 
ranks firms by the number of full-time-equivalent attorneys, rather than by actual headcounts. 
In September 2013, the firm was recognized as the state leader with the most women & 
minority partners by California Lawyer magazine, a Daily Journal publication. Over twenty-
five percent (25.7%) of AALRR partners are women or minorities. Further, California Lawyer 
magazine ranked AALRR 39th in terms of firm size. 
 
The National Law Journal recognized Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo as one of the 
top 20 mid-size law firms in the nation in their 2013 “Hot List.” Our firm is also ranked 39th by 
size in the Los Angeles Daily Journal’s annual survey of the “Top California Law Firms” 
(March 2013) and 32nd in the Los Angeles Business Journal’s annual ranking of the “Top 
100 Largest Law Firms in L.A. County” (March 2013). While rankings and awards are 
important, it is our clients’ continued trust and satisfaction that we value most.  
 
We have several attorney practice groups within our firm that specialize in specific areas, 
including a public entity practice group that represents cities, counties, and special districts. 
This structure allows attorneys to gain more extensive, direct experience and technical 
knowledge in their practice group areas, and pass that experience and knowledge on to our 
clients.  

Our firm takes pride in our proactive communication with respect to legal developments. We 
regularly issue client alerts regarding new cases or legislation and work closely with our 
clients to understand the impact of such decisions on their organization. We also annually 
conduct and host hundreds of conferences and in-house trainings that are designed to 
educate and minimize liability.  

The table below provides a representative description of the service areas requested under 
the RFP. 
 

 
 Firm Areas of Experience   

Labor Relations Collective Bargaining, Advice & Counsel, Grievance Processing, 
Arbitrations, Mediation, Fact-finding, Litigation 

Governance Board Policy Development, Ralph M. Brown Act Compliance, 
Board Relations, California Education Code and Title 5 
Regulations Interpretation, Public Records Act Responses, 
Training for Governing Boards, Conflict and Disclosure Advice 

 

Our practice groups meet regularly to develop sound strategies for solving complex legal 
problems, keep abreast of new developments in the law, and ensure the highest quality of 
service is provided to our clients.  Chesley D. Quaide, a partner with the Firm will be the 
Association’s primary contact.  His contact information is provided below: 



 

3 

 
Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo 

5075 Hopyard Road, Suite 210 
Pleasanton, CA 94588 

 

www.aalrr.com 

Chesley D. Quaide, 
Partner and Primary 

Contact 

Direct: 925.251.8506 
cquaide@aalrr.com 

Main:  925.227.9200 
Fax: 925.227.9202 

 

The bargaining team identified for the Association brings decades of bargaining experience 
and legal counsel for the public sector. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Bargaining Units/Labor Union 
 
Our attorneys have been invited to the bargaining table for over 35 years, representing 
employers, public agencies and special districts in collective bargaining negotiations, labor 
relations, meet and confer issues, and in grievance arbitrations. Team Negotiators serve as 
spokespersons or advisors in negotiations, draft and review proposed contractual language, 
consult with and advise the administration and governing board regarding the negotiations, 
and work with employers and agencies representing clients through mediation and fact-
finding, when necessary.  

mailto:cquaide@aalrr.com


 

4 

Our labor and employment legal knowledge along with our industry insights have provided 
our clients with collaborative/interest based bargaining techniques and traditional labor 
negotiations. We have negotiated virtually every issue within the scope of bargaining, as 
agencies were dealing with severe budgetary shortfalls, our firm negotiators successfully 
represented clients in negotiating salary and benefit reductions and other labor concessions.  
 
Our recent negotiations have resulted in changes to retiree medical benefits, implementation 
of furloughs, salary concessions, and changes to pension benefit formulas and 
contributions.  A representative list of Chesley Quaide’s and Todd Goluba’s accomplishments 
at the bargaining table includes the following: 

 
Chesley Quaide 
Chesley Quaide began his legal career 25 years ago representing unions and union 
members for a San Francisco labor law firm.  This work included representing police 
and firefighters in legal proceedings, negotiations and disciplinary proceedings. 
 
In December of 1990, Mr. Quaide joined AALRR and since then has been successfully 
representing school districts and county offices of education in negotiations in four 
different counties. 
 
Mr. Quaide has represented the Stanislaus County Office of Education (“SCOE”) in 
both certificated and classified negotiations since 2006.  In 2011, facing a bleak fiscal 
situation, SCOE found it necessary to negotiate a significant cut to its certificated 
(teaching) staff health benefit costs.  Mr. Quaide successfully negotiated a reduction in 
the employer’s maximum health benefit contribution cap from $18,000/year to 
$12,000/year.  This was accomplished without having to go to impasse. 
 
If the parties are forced to go to impasse, however, Mr. Quaide has proceeded to 
mediation countless times, and has on three separate occasions represented an 
employer that had to unilaterally implement its last, best and final offer following 
impasse proceedings in order to remain fiscally solvent (Merced River School District, 
Hilmar Unified School District and Knights Ferry Unified School District). 
 
In addition to the Stanislaus County Office of Education, Mr. Quaide has represented 
the Escalon Unified School District, the San Carlos School District, the San Mateo 
Union High School District, the Merced Community College District, the South San 
Francisco Unified School District, the Chatom Union School District and the Ripon 
Unified School District in negotiations. 
 
Todd Goluba 
Over the past 15 years, Mr. Goluba has negotiated to settlement over 70 labor 
contracts for over 20 public entities.  He has negotiated four contracts from beginning 
to end with newly formed unions, and thus has extensive experience in negotiating all 
contract articles.  Mr. Goluba has been through all phases of the negotiation process 
from table bargaining to impasse to fact-finding to unilateral imposition. 
 



 

5 

Mr. Goluba received statewide recognition for his role leading the Lucia Mar Unified 
School District bargaining team to an historic settlement with CTA establishing an 
evaluation system linking student achievement on standardized tests to performance-
based bonuses for teachers.  Based on this achievement, California Lawyer Magazine 
awarded Mr. Goluba a 2012 CLAY Award recognizing him as California Attorney of the 
Year for extraordinary achievement in Education Law.  Mr. Goluba is known for 
building good working relationships across the bargaining table and for making sure 
that the District’s positions in bargaining are in full alignment with the governing board. 
 
In 2010, Mr. Goluba represented the West Valley-Mission Community College 
District’s bargaining team to a settlement with ACE, the District’s academic (teaching) 
employee bargaining unit, which achieved the long standing District goal of 
implementing a health benefit cap. 

 
Bargaining Approach 
 
As a general approach, we will work with and for the Association’s management team.  We 
strive to provide professional advice to assist the Association in determining its policy goals 
and objectives, which then become our goals and objectives.  One of the main goals for our 
attorney negotiators is to assist CCCERA management in becoming a more informed, and 
possibly a more effective participant in the bargaining process.  We see the conclusion of the 
negotiation process as the beginning of a constructive employer-employee organization-
relationship. 
 
We believe in carefully organizing for negotiations, with goals and objectives clearly identified 
and develop the appropriate negotiating process to include preparatory activities to the 
preliminary bargaining phases, bargaining, and finally to agreement or impasse procedure.   
 
We use a professional approach that seeks to achieve and maintain professional 
relationships, while still understanding the necessary adjustments to keep in line with client 
resources, goals and objectives. 
 
Firm attorneys will work diligently to timely communicate with identified management.  A 
complete understanding of the bargaining units, current contracts, goals and objectives will 
drive the management of negotiations.  The Firm will work in conjunction with the Association 
management team to implement the strategic plan and direction of the Association.  An initial 
assessment report of the bargaining unit would be issued at the onset of the engagement and 
updated as events dictated. Since the negotiations process is fluid, Firm attorney negotiators 
work diligently to timely communicate with Association management.   
 
While there is one lead negotiator handling each bargaining unit, at least one other 
designated attorney will be kept advised of the matter so that the Association has access to 
an attorney who is familiar with the status of bargaining.   Attorney negotiators are also 
expected to compile a list of items and tasks to be completed by members of the bargaining 
team after each negotiation and to ensure that bargaining proceeds expeditiously.   Typically, 
these tasks will be noted in an email and circulated to the bargaining team.  In addition, each 



 

6 

negotiator is required to keep an office file of their bargaining binder so that documents are 
maintained for future reference and use. 
 
Advice and Counsel | Labor & Operations Advice 
 

Firm attorneys designated on the 
Association team have practiced 
employment law for public agencies since 
they received their law degrees.  Their 
knowledge and background provide a solid 
foundation to effective negotiating 
techniques. Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, 

Ruud & Romo is dedicated to working with public sector clients—and we are recognized for 
our experience and success in handling the bargaining table and employment matters. We 
offer unmatched bench strength and California expertise. 
 
As the CCCERA transitions into its role as a direct public employer our attorneys can provide 
advice and counsel in a wide-range of areas. When it comes to understanding the ins and 
outs of the public sector and how it operates, our attorneys have been there, with many 
having had past service in the agencies they are now serving.  We know who and what you 
are dealing with—and we know how to help you achieve your goals.  AALRR understands 
that county entities face unique challenges due to the nature of public employment. In 
addition to following specific laws and regulations, they also encounter a heightened level of 
scrutiny and pressure from both unions and elected officials.  New areas of concern for the 
Association may include the following: 
 
Free Speech/First Amendment 
Our attorneys are well versed in the area of free speech rights of public employees. With the 
expanding use of social media and increased reporting of public agency activities, an 
employer must weigh the rights of its employees to express themselves regarding matters of 
public concern and the impact on agency operations before taking action. Our firm has 
advised numerous clients in this rapidly evolving area. 
 
The Brown Act 
We regularly provide legal interpretations and advice concerning elected official relations 
issues, including advising and training legislative bodies on the Brown Act. We have also 
litigated a number of issues relating to the Brown Act, including questions relating to the 
definition of a meeting, the propriety of closed session discussions, and the obligation to 
announce out certain actions taken in closed session. With respect to the Public Records Act, 
we regularly provide public agencies with advice and counsel and have been involved in 
litigation relating to whether a party to pending litigation against a public agency may still 
attempt to obtain documents by way of the Public Records Act. 
 
Whistleblower/Retaliation 
The firm has handled many cases involving “whistleblower” cases brought pursuant to 
provisions of the Government, and Labor Codes. These claims require particularized 



 

7 

handling due to the different burden of proof standards. We also regularly advise and 
represent our clients in dealing with claims of retaliation brought by employees.  
 
Privacy Issues 
Our attorneys routinely counsel employers with respect to employee privacy matters. We 
assist employers in developing or evaluating personnel policies dealing with privacy issues, 
including employee drug testing procedures, monitoring of employees' telephone, email, and 
Internet use, and employer use of consumer, credit, motor vehicle, and criminal background 
reports during the hiring or promotion process. 
 
Public Agency Experience 
 

The firm’s philosophy is rooted in understanding 
the broad spectrum of legal issues that affect 
public entities.  We regularly advise our clients 
on all aspects of public agency law, providing 
legal interpretations and advice. We are 
regularly called upon to interpret the Municipal 
Code, Government Code, Public Contract Code, 
as well as various other provisions of state and 

federal law governing how agencies operate.  Because AALRR is one of the largest law firms 
in California, the firm has the substantial benefit of broad and diverse technical knowledge, 
practical experience and professional resources, which enable the firm to offer the best legal 
services to clients in a cost-efficient and timely manner.  
 
We assist agencies in drafting and revising personnel rules that emphasize employer rights 
and clear expectations for employees, and avoid the guarantees of "fairness" or "due 
process" which frequently become the basis for breach of employment contract lawsuits. Our 
attorneys also conduct comprehensive compliance audits to help clients limit liability in the 
event that a federal or state agency conducts an inspection or audit.  
 
AALRR also has extensive experience in California’s administrative law practice.  The Firm’s 
practice of administrative law encompasses not only the state and local licensing needs of 
our clients, but involves the on-going development of our clients’ ability to conduct their 
business in compliance with all the state and local laws and regulations. 
 
STAFFING 
 

Mr. Quaide and his team of attorneys are easily reachable wherever they may be and provide 
timely and responsive advice without the need for extensive legal research.  Phone calls are 
usually returned within one hour and almost always within four (4) hours of a message being 
placed.  Email response time is equally quick as Firm attorneys carry personal 
communications devices when out of the office and do not hesitate to communicate after 
work hours and on weekends when there is a need.  In addition, the Firm’s Pleasanton office 
is sufficiently close to the Association so that attorneys can make office visits or attend Board 
meetings as needed.  
 



 

8 

REFERENCES 

 
Draza Mrvichin, Mediator  
Retired from California State Mediation and Conciliation Services, Department of Industrial 
Relations 
dmrvichin@yahoo.com 
 
Stanislaus County Office of Education 
1100 H Street 
Modesto, CA  95354-2338 
Tom Changnon, County Superintendent – Phone:  (209) 238-1776 
 
Walnut Creek Elementary School District 
960 Ygnacio Valley Road 
Walnut Creek, CA  94597 
Dr. Patricia A. Wool, Superintendent – Phone:  (925) 944-6850 x2001 
 
Merced Union High School District 
P.O. Box 2147 
Merced, CA  95344-0147 
Stacy McAfee, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources – Phone:  (209) 385-6420 
 
Livingston Union School District 
922 B Street 
Livingston, CA  95334-1198 
Andrés Zamora, Superintendent – Phone:  (209) 394-5421 
 
COSTS 
 

As our firm is always mindful the larger budgetary realities facing public agencies, we 
understand the importance our clients place on receiving value for their fees.  Our firm 
resources offer the ability to work on projects with a team approach allowing project 
completion at the appropriate, cost-effective level.  We provide cost estimates of specific 
matters so that clients can make informed decisions about their options.  With respect to the 
cost estimate of a particular assignment, we can prepare a budget for consideration by the 
Association following our initial assessment of the nature and scope of the assignment. 
 
In order to assist in tracking costs on particular cases or issues, the firm has created a “point 
number” billing system. As a further way of keeping track of ongoing matters, a supervising 
attorney may provide clients with a monthly status report including a summary of current 
activities and progress towards resolution. Our billing is done monthly and then submitted to 
the client. The bill can be separated by department or matter. Our Billing Manager is 
responsible for managing the firm’s billing and ensuring the billing information meets the 
client’s needs. Our firm uses the CMS software program for billing purposes. Hard copies of 
invoices are sent between the 10th and 15th of every month.   
 

mailto:dmrvichin@yahoo.com


 

9 

Telephone calls are billed to the client at the actual cost of the call, plus the attorney’s time. 
The firm recognizes that the CCCERA expects not to pay for travel time unless substantive 
work takes place during the travel time. AALRR will adhere to this requirement.   
 

Hourly Rates - billed one-tenth (.10) of an hour  

Partners $295 

Senior Associates - (More than six years’ 
experience) 

$270 

Associates - (Less than six years of experience) $210 - $240 

Paralegal $160 

 
Additional expenses associated with our proposal for legal services are as follows: 
 

1. Photocopying $.20 (B&W) $.50 (color) per page 

2. Document production and word processing: $40.00 per hour 

3. Long distance telephone calls: At cost 

4. Facsimile mail: $2.00 per page outgoing & incoming 

5. Messenger/Overnight Mail charges  At cost 

6. Computerized Legal Research At cost 

7. Lodging At cost 

  



 

10 

ATTACHMENT A - ATTORNEY RESUMES 
 

 
CHESLEY D. QUAIDE 
Partner 
cquaide@aalrr.com 
 
 

Education Law 
Labor and Employment Law 
 
 
Experience 
Chesley Quaide is a partner in the Pleasanton office of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & 
Romo. Mr. Quaide is the Practice Group Leader of the Northern California Public Sector 
Practice Group and also managing Partner of the firm’s Pleasanton office.  He focuses on 
education law and labor relations and employment/labor law. 
 
Mr. Quaide served as General Counsel of the Merced County Office of Education from 1991 - 
2004, and currently serves as General Counsel of the Stanislaus County Office of Education 
(since 1996) and the San Joaquin County Office of Education (since 2006). Before joining the 
firm in 1990, Mr. Quaide represented unions and individuals in state and federal court 
proceedings and law and motion hearings, before civil service and police commissions, in 
Skelly hearings, internal investigations, unemployment insurance appeals boards and in all 
aspects of employee grievance procedures while working as an associate for a San 
Francisco union labor law firm. 
 
In representing California school districts, Mr. Quaide has served as lead counsel in two 
published California Court of Appeal decisions that have established important precedential 
rights for school districts. 
 
In California Teachers Association v. Governing Board of the Hilmar Unified School District, 
95 Cal.App.4th 183, 115 Cal.Rptr.2d 323 (2002), the court upheld a school district’s right to 
negotiate with a certificated union regarding salary compensation based on factors other than 
years of training and years of experience.  In this case the school district had negotiated with 
its’ certificated union to allow a one-time bonus be paid to returning unit members, but the 
union and some non-returning teachers subsequently sued the school district alleging that 
this agreement violated Education Code 45028 (the uniform salary schedule statute). 
 
In Ripon Unified School District v. Messick (2009) 177 Cal. App. 4th 1379, the court upheld 
the right of school districts to discipline and terminate tenured teachers for failing to obtain EL 
(“CLAD”) certification.  
 
In addition to the above, Mr. Quaide is a certified FRISK® and AB 1825 Sexual Harassment 
trainer and has also presented numerous workshops and lectures on a variety of issues 



 

11 

including collective bargaining, the Brown Act, Grand Juries, and other matters of interest to 
the educational community. 
 

Education 
Mr. Quaide earned his undergraduate degree from the University of California, Berkeley.  He 
earned his Juris Doctor, with Honors, from the University of San Francisco School of Law.  

Admission 
1988, California and U.S. District Court, Northern District of California; 1990, U.S. District 
Court, Eastern and Central Districts of California 

Memberships 
State Bar of California 

Publications and Speaking Engagements 
Mr. Quaide is an active contributor to the firm’s various publications. 
 
  



 

12 

 
TODD A. GOLUBA 
Partner 
tgoluba@aalrr.com 
 
 

Education Law 
 
 
Experience 
Todd Goluba is a partner in the Pleasanton office.  Mr. Goluba serves as General Counsel to 
over 25 school districts, community college districts, and county offices of education.  With 
over 20 years of experience in education law, Mr. Goluba also specializes in being Chief 
Labor Negotiator for districts engaged in certificated and classified collective bargaining.  He 
is the leader of the Firm’s Personnel and Education Law Practice Team for Northern 
California.  Mr. Goluba was named 2012 California Attorney of the Year by California Lawyer 
Magazine for extraordinary achievement in Education Law.   
 
Mr. Goluba is known for his entertaining and interactive trainings in the FRISK Employee 
Documentation Model, AB 1825 Sexual Harassment Prevention, the Brown Act and Board 
Governance Issues (“Nightmare on Board Night”).  In addition, the Community College 
Association of Chief Human Resource Officers (ACHRO), the Community College League of 
California (CCLC), the California School Boards Association (CSBA), and the Association of 
California School Administrators (ACSA) regularly request for Mr. Goluba to speak at their 
local and statewide functions. 
 
He is a Past President of the California Council of School Attorneys (2005). 
 
Education 
Mr. Goluba earned his Bachelor of Arts degree in English from the University of California, 
Berkeley, (1989) and his Juris Doctor from the University of California, Hastings College of 
the Law, San Francisco (1992).   
 
Admission 
1992, California, U.S. District Court, Northern District of California and U.S. Court of Appeals, 
Ninth Circuit 
 
  



 

13 

 
STEPHANIE M. WHITE  
Associate 
swhite@aalrr.com 
 
 

Education Law 
 
 
Experience 
Stephanie White is an associate in the Pleasanton office and represents California public 
school districts, county offices of education and community college districts in all aspects of 
education law with an emphasis in personnel/labor relations and student issues.  Her areas of 
expertise include advising and representing clients with regard to certificated and classified 
discipline and dismissal proceedings, responding to complaints filed against employers with 
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and Department of Fair Employment and 
Housing, and defending unfair practice charges before the Public Employment Relations 
Board.   
 
Ms. White has extensive experience in conducting complex investigations on behalf of school 
districts and community colleges related to claims of sexual harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation.  She also is experienced in advising on FERPA and student confidentiality issues, 
student discipline and expulsions proceedings, record retention and Public Records Act 
requests. 

Ms. White has taught classes on practical legal information to inner-city high school seniors in 
San Francisco and has volunteered as a housing negotiator with the San Francisco Bar.  She 
is also currently a member of UCLA’s Alumni Scholarship Committee. 
 
Education 
Ms. White earned her Bachelor of Arts degree in Sociology from University of California, Los 
Angeles and her Juris Doctor from Golden Gate University School of Law. 
 
Admissions 
2010, California and U.S. District Court, Central District of California 
 
Memberships 
State Bar of California 
San Francisco Bar Association, member 
 
  



 

14 

 
GILBERT A. CASTRO 
Associate  
gcastro@aalrr.com 
 
 

Education Law 
 
 
Experience 
Gilbert Castro is an associate in the Pleasanton office of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & 
Romo. Mr. Castro represents California school districts and community college districts as 
general counsel in education law and labor relations. Mr. Castro has administrative hearing 
experience which includes appearing in matters before personnel commissions, retirement 
boards, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission, the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB), and the Office of 
Civil Rights (OCR).  
 
Prior to joining AALRR, Mr. Castro was an Associate with McNamara, Ney, Beatty, Slattery, 
Borges & Ambacher.  He is fluent in Spanish. 
 
Education 
Mr. Castro graduated magna cum laude from the University of Minnesota School of Law, with 
a double concentration in Labor and Employment and Human Rights Law. While in law 
school, Mr. Castro received honors distinctions in Legal Writing and Contracts, was Associate 
Editor of the Journal of Law and Inequality, and served as Vice-President of the Law Council. 
He earned his B.A. degree in Spanish from California State University, East Bay, after 
spending two years living in Argentina. 
 
He also served as an extern to the Hon. John R. Tunheim of the U.S. District Court of 
Minnesota, a Student Attorney in the Employment Law Clinic, President of the Asylum Law 
Project, and the Advocacy Coordinator for the non-profit legal aid center Centro Legal, Inc. 
Upon graduation from law school, Mr. Castro was honored with the President's Student 
Leadership and Service Award and the Matt Stark Civil Rights and Civil Liberties Award. 
 
Admission 
2010, California and U.S. District Court, Northern District of California 

 
Memberships 
Contra Costa County Bar Association; State Bar of California; Council on Legal Education 
Opportunity. Mr. Castro currently serves on the Board of the Child Abuse Prevention Council 
of Contra Costa County. 
 











 
 

MEMORANDUM 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747    www.cccera.org 

 

 

 

Date:  November 5, 2014    

To:  Board of Retirement 

From:  Karen Levy, General Counsel 

Subject: State Association of County Retirement Systems 

  Legislative Proposal - 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
 

The State Association of County Retirement Systems ("SACRS") has provided its legislative 

proposal for 2015, a copy of which is enclosed.  The legislation proposed by the Los Angeles 

County Employees Retirement Association ("LACERA") would clarify that the unmodified or 

optional settlement selected by a member can later be modified if the member is granted a 

disability benefit.  This is already the practice of several CERL systems, including CCCERA.  

As such, the proposed legislation, if passed, would not change the way in which CCCERA 

handles option selection for members who are granted a disability retirement.   

 

The SACRS Legislative Committee has voted in favor of the proposed legislation.  At the 

Friday, November 14, 2014 SACRS Business Meeting, SACRS member systems will be asked 

to approve the SACRS proposals.  The Board should provide guidance to its voting delegate 

attending the meeting with regards to its support, opposition, or abstention on this SACRS action 

item. 

 

Recommendation 
 

Consider the SACRS legislative proposal and direct the Board's voting delegate attending 

business meeting on November 14, 2014 to support the inclusion of the LACERA proposal in the 

SACRS 2015 Legislative Platform. 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747    www.cccera.org 

 

 

 

Date:  November 5, 2014    

To:  Board of Retirement 

From:  Karen Levy, General Counsel 

Subject: Report of Purchase/Sale of Pension Fund Investment: PIMCO 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background and Report 
 

The Board met in closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.81 to consider the 

sale and purchase of a particular pension fund investment on October 8, 2014, Agenda Item No. 

6.   In accordance with Government Code Section 54957.1(a)(7), the following action is hereby 

reported:  It was M/S/C to direct PIMCO to sell the CCCERA investments in the sector funds 

and invest the proceeds in a separate account broadly intended to track the Barclays Aggregate 

Index.  (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles, Watts. Opp.: 

None.:  Abs.: None.)   

 

Recommendation 
 

Accept report. 



Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

   1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 C 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 B 12 13 14 C C C B 12 13 14

11 12 13 B 15 16 17 15 16 17 SB 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 SB 20 21

18 19 20 SB 22 23 24 22 23 24 Q 26 27 28 22 23 24 B 26 27 28

25 26 27 B 29 30 31        29 CII CII     

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

  CII 2 3 4     1 2  1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 B 9 10 11 N N N N 8 9 7 8 9 B 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 B 23 24 25 17 18 19 Q 21 22 23 21 22 23 B 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30   24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30     

31       

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

  1 2 3 4      1 1 2 3 4 5

5 6 7 B 9 10 11 2 3 SL SL SL SL 8 6 7 8 B 10 11 12

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 B 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

PPI PPI PPI 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 B 24 25 26

26 27 28 29 30 31  23 24 25 Q 27 28 29 27 28 29 CII    

30 31

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

   CII CII 3 1 2 3 B 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

4 5 6 B I I I 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 B 10 11 12

I 12 13 14 SB 16 17 15 16 S S S S 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

18 19 20 B 22 23 24 22 23 Q 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 27 28 29 30 31   

B Board Meeting CII CII SL Stanford Law: Principles of Pension Management

Q Quarterly Meeting C CALAPRS PPI SACRS: Public Pension Investment Management

SB Special Board Meeting N NCPERS W Wharton: Portfolio Concepts

S SACRS I IFEBP

CCCERA Board Meetings 2015

January February March

H - Veterans Day

H - Thanksgiving

April May June

July August September

H - Independence Day H - Labor Day

October November December

H - New Year's Day

H - Martin Luther King Jr. Day
H - Presidents' Day

H - Memorial Day

H - Christmas Day

SB

PPI

W

S

W W W W

S S S S

N

B




	agenda 11.05.14
	Item 3
	Minutes 9.10.14
	Minutes 9.17.14

	Item 4
	Item 6
	Memo to Board CCCERA District Participating In CCCERA Retirement System
	District Participation Resolution 2014-2

	Item 7
	Memo to Board CCCERA Consent to CCCERA District Participating In CCCERA Retirement System
	Retirement System Consent to District Participation Resolution 2014-3

	Item 8
	Negotiator Memo
	CCCERA Labor Negotiator RFP summary
	WPR ~ Resp to CCCERA RFP for Labor Neg
	AALRR ~ Response to Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association Submission

	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13

